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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited financial statements of Al-
Sagr Mational Insurance Company (Fublic Shareholding Company); for the year ended 31 December 2022

Financial Highlights

The Company has reported a premium of AED 633.7 million for year ended 31 December 2022 compared
te AFD 5004 million for the corresponding prior year, The Company has reported an underwriting profit
of AED 17.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 compared to underwriting loss of AED 7.3 million

for the comresponding pricr vear, the Company reported for the year ended 2022 a et loss of AED 49.4
million compared to a net loss of AEDY 629 millliom in 2021 .

Directors:-
Mr. Majid Abdulla Al Sari Chairman
¥ir. Klalld Absdulia Omran Tariam Wice Chairman
Mir. Ayman Mohd Yusrd Al Dweilk Diirecior
¥ir. Mohamed Ali Al Sari Director
Mir. Abdel Muhsen Jaber Diirector & CED
Auditors:-

Grant Thomton were appointed as auditors of the Al Sagr National Insurance Company for the year 2022
et the Annual General Meeting held on 21 /04 /2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Sharcholders of Al-Sagr National Insurance Company (PSC)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the Gnancial statements of Al-Sagr Nstional Insurance Company (PSC) (the "Company™),
which comprse the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, the swrtement of
fre income, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows for the yesr then ended,
and notes to the fnancial statemenis, ineluding a summary of significant accounting policies.
Inhrupiﬂmnﬂulﬁmmpmgﬁgﬁwmﬂmmﬂpelmmdﬂrmufmwpudﬁmuf
the Company as at 31 December 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in sccordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our sudit in accordance with International Standseds on Auditing (TSAs). Crur responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Anditer's Regponsiiliier for the Audt of the Finamdal Stotemvents
section of our report. We are independent of the Company In eccordance with Intemnational Erhies
Standards Board for Accountant's Code of Ebicr for Professionsl Acconatamty (TETHA Code), and we have
fulfilied our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the requirements of IESBA Code. We believe
that the sudit evidence we have obmined is sufficient and approprate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Mamer

We draw autention 1o note 27 to the financial information which states that the Company did not meet the
Minimum Capital Requirements of AED 100 millien and that the Company's ability o comply with the
solvency requirements on the effective implementaton of the business plan submitted w the
Central Bank of UAE. This indicates that 2 matcral uncerminty caists that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability vo continue as a going concetn. Cur opinion i3 not modified in respect of this matrer.
Eey Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our i were of most signi in our
audit of the financial lwﬂﬂmyﬂtmlhmmmﬂmmﬁfmmﬂm
audit of the financial statements 45 & whale, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
scparate opinion on these matters, For each matter on the next page, our description of how our audic
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Audior’s Regonnbilive for the Andit of the Financial
JStatoments section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our sudit incladed the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the msks of marerial misstatement of
the financial statements. The resubs of our audit procedures, Including the procedures performed to address
the matters on the next page, provide the basis for our sodit opinion on the accompanying Anancial
statements,
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o Grant Thornton

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Sharcholders of Al-Sagr Nadonal Insurance Company (PSC)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)
Eey Audit Matters (continaed)

i)

i)

Valuation of rechnical provistons

The estimation of Habilites ansing from. insumnce contmacts such & uncamed premium reserve,
putstanding claims teserve, incurred but not reported reserve, unexpired dsk reserve, unallocated loss
adjustment expense mserve and mathemarical reserve, a8 disclosed in note 11 o these fnancial
staternents, irvolves o significant degree of judgement. These liabilities are based on the pattem of rsk
distmbutions over coverage period, the best-estimated uhimate cost of all claims incucred but not sextled
at ¢ gven date, whether reported or not, together with the relared claims handling costs, morality and
persistency (including consideration of policyholder behavior), Acteamal computations have been used
to determine these provisions. Undesdying these computations are o number of explich or mplice
assumnptions relating to the expected setdement amount and settlernent patterns of chima. Since the
desermination of such a provision requires the expertise of an extemal valution expert who Incorporates
significan -ﬁ:m judgements and estimarions, the valustion of these linbilites was significant o
CHIT

proceduses:

Understood the governance process in plice to determine the insurance contract abilises;
Tested the underlying Company dam to source documentadon an sample basts;

Evaluated eompetence, capahilities and objectivity of management’s actaaral specialist;

Uting our actuarial specialist team, we spplied our industry knowledge and expedence, and
mpudﬂrﬂtﬂi:ﬂ:kg' moxdels snd stnsmpdions used sgoinst recognised sctuatal practices;

. qummﬂmﬂm,m&mHﬂmﬁmﬂm]m:ﬂqnfﬂ:
spplied on selected dasses of business, particulardy focusing on the largest and most uncertain
IESErVES.

Valuation of investment property

The Company holds investment property under the fair value model as at 31 December 2022

amounting to AED 157,931 895 (2021: AED 157,931 895), as detailed in note 9 to these financial

statenents. The fair valoe estimate requires significant judgement and estimates by mansgement

and independent external valuers. The Company has invoheed independent external valuer in oedes

to walue the investment property for the purpose of determining the fair value for inclusion in the

fnancinl statements, The existence of significant estimation and judgement coupled with change

in waleation assumptions used could result in material change. Therefiore, the valuation of this

investment property was sipnificant to our aondit.

Ohar procedures in relation to management’s valostion of investment property included:

®  Assessing the competence, capabilities, and objectvity of extemal valoers;

*  Ewvalusting the sccurscy and completeness of the source data used in the calculation of fair
values;

available sources of information to independently cormborate the valustion performed by
management expert.
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t Auditor’s Report
To the Sharcholders of Al-Sagr National Insurance Company (PSC)

Report on the Andit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)
i) Impairment losses on insurance receivables including third party recoverdes

The Company has insurance recetvables that are overdue and not impaired {as discosed in noee 11 o
these financial statements). The key associsted dsk is the recovernbility of receivahles. Management's
related allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) is sobjective and is influenced by sssampetions
concerming the probahiliey of default and probable kosses in the event of defiul,

The wark that we performed o address this key sudit matter included the following procedures:

* Obmined an understanding of the Company's process for estimating ECL and assessed the
approprateness of ECL methodology against the requirernents of IFRS 9;

®  Assessed the ressonshlencss of managements’ key assumptians and judgements made in
determining allowance for ECL, segmenting of receivables and macrosconomic factors;

* Tmced the ousunding amounts from sample of receivables o undedying supporting
documents;

*  Vedfied payments received from receivables post year-end for the sample; and

* Considered the adequacy of provisions for impairment of insursnce balances recefvable for
sigmificant customers, taking Into sccount spedfic credic osk assessmients for each customer
based on default, existence of any disputes over the balance outstanding, history of sertlement
of receivables lizbilites with the customers.

vy Impairment assessment of investment in associates

The Company holds investment in associates as at 31 December 2022, as disclosed in note 6 o dse
financial statements. The management assesses af least snnually the existence of impaiment indicators
for is imvestment in sssociates. Accordingly, the pooocesses and methodologies for asssssing and
determining the ocoverable amount of the investrent are based on comples assomptions, in particular
with reference to identification of impairment indicaton, forecast of funare cashflows, long temm growth
mates and discount moes applied to such cshflows. Considering the judgement required for estimating
the cashflows and the complexity of the sssomptions used, this is considered a3 o key audit maeter.
The work that we performed to address this key audic matter included the following procedures:
*  Obwined an undestanding of the Company's process for assessment of impairment of
investmient in associutes;
®  Assessed the methodology used by the mansgement 1o estimate the recoverable amount of the
investment and conskstency with the IFRS;
*  Compared the carrying valoes of the investments with their respective net asset values and
market value available a5 at the reporting date;
*  Whete any indicators of impairment were expected, we obtained management valuation and
evalusted the adequacy of key assumptions such as the discount mte and growth mate; and
*  Evalusted the sdequecy of the disclosures in these Snancial statemnents.
Other information
t is responsible for the other information. Other information consists of the informadon
incloded in the repont of Company's Board of Directors, pror to the date of our auditor’s report.

form of assumnce conchasion thereon.
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Shareholders of Al-Sagr National Insurance Company (PSC)

Report on the Aundit of the Financial Statemnents (continued)

Other information {(continued)

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materally inconsistent with
the fnancial starements or our knowledge obtained n the swdit or otherwise appears t© be materally
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the
date of this suditor’s report, we conclude that there is a materal misstatement of this ather information,
we are roquired to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Govemnance for the Financial
Statements

Manugemnent is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Bnancal statements in
sccordence with International Fingncial Reporting Standards and in compliance with the i
provisions of the Company’s Aricles of Associstion and of the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021 and
the UAE Federal Law No. {§) of 2007 and for such internal control as management determines is necsssary
o enable the prepamtion of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether doe o
frand or ermor.

In preparing the financial statements, management 5 responsible for assessing the Company’s shility o
continue 25 a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters selated to gring concern and using the going
concern basis of secounting unless management either intends to bquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic altermative but o do 0.

Those chasged with gevernance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Aunditor's Responsibilities for The Audit of The Financial Statements

Char ohjectives are to obin reasonable assurance about whether the finandal statements as 3 whole are
free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an suditor’s repont that inclades
our opinion. Reasonable sssurance is o high level of assumnce, but s not a pearantes thar an sudit conducted
in aecordance with 13As will always detect & material misstaternent when it exbiss, Misstatements can arise
from fraud of emor and are considered materal if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected o influence the economic decsions of wers taken on the basis of these financial suements.

As part of an audit in sccordance with [5As, we exercise professional judgment end maintin professional
skepticiem throughout the audit. We alsoc

*  ldentfy and assess the daks of marerial misstatement of the Anancial statements, whether due o frand
or ertor, design and perform audit procedures responsive 1o those risks, and obtain sudit evidence
that is sufficient and appropate to provide a basls for our oplnion. The fsk of not detecting & matedal
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting From erroe, a3 Frand may imvolve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intermal contral,

*  Obtain un understanding of internal control relevant to the audic in order to design sudit procedures
that are appropriate in the circomstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s intemal control,

* FEvaluare the appropristeness of accounting policies used and the reasonsblensss of sccounting
estimases and related disclosures made by manigement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Al-Sagr National Insurance Company (PSC)

Repaort on the Audit of the Financial Starements (continued)
Auditor’s Responsibilitics for The Audit of The Financial $ttements (continued)

* Conclede on the appropriatencss of mansgement's use of the going concemn basis of sccounting snd,
based on the sudit evidence obtained, whether 2 material uncerminey exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continee as & going coneern. If
we conclude that 2 matenal uncerminty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Cur conclusions are based on the sudit evidence obmined up to the date of our suditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may canse the Company to cease to continue s 3 going
concemn.

* Evaluse the overall presentation, stracture and content of the financisl statements, incloding the
disciosures, and whether the financial statemments represent the underlying trensactons and events in
o manner that achieves fair presentation.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, amoeg other maners, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant sudie findings, incloding any significant deficiencies in intemal
controd that we identify during our sudit.
We also provide those charged with governance with o statement that we have complied with relevane
ethical requirements regarding independence, and © communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where spplicable, refated
safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those maners that
were of most significance in the audit of the fimancial staternents of the current period and are therefiore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless low or tegulation preciudes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of daing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law Mo. (32) of 2021, we report thak

)  the Company has maintined proper books of acoount;

i)  we have obtained all the information we considered necessary for the purposes of our audit;

i) &ﬁwﬂ-mmmwﬂmmmmmmmmw
provisions of the Amicles of Assodation of the Company end the UAE Federal Law No. (33) of
20

v}  the financil information inchaded in the Board of Directors” Report, in so far as it relures to these
fnsncial statements, is eomistent with the books of sccount of the Company;

v]  investments in shares end stocks during the year ended 31 December 2022, are disclosed in note 7
io these financial smemenis;

vi] note 24 reflect matens] related party transactions and the terms under which they were conducted;
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Ta the Sharcholders of Al-Sagr National Insutance Company (PSC)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements {continued)
vid) note 21 to the Boancial statements reflects the socnl coatdbutons made during the year; and

witi] based on the information that has been made available to us nothing has come to our attention which
causes s o believe that the Company has contravened during the financial year ended 31 December
2022 any of the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law Mo, (32) of 2021 or its Awmicles of
Asgocation which would have a3 matedal impact on ity sctivitics or s Ansocial position as at
31 December 2022,

Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law Mo. (6} of 2007, we report that we have obtained il the

information and explanation we considersd necessary for the purpose of our sadit.




Al-Sagr Mational Insutance Company (PSC)
Statement of financial position
Az at 31 December 2022

2022 207y

Motes AED ABD
ASSETS
Property and equipment 5 BOTESSEB  HB5214%4
Investment in associstes [ 90,475, 358 118,340 504
Inwestment in financisl sweets at fair value denugh profit or
loss [FYTPL) 7 19, 404 579 15,587,604
Investment property 1} 157,931,595 157,531 B85
Inwiwance recervables 10 252 570025 198,194,939
Retrnirer share of ountsndg elams 1 127,993 504 154,045 B0
Reirgurer shere of incurred but not reporied cleims 1 1,600,944 26,313,057
hmlh!ﬂwpmm 11 Of AR 512 13,880,741
Fmnsurey share of mathemabcal resepe 11 251 118 1,140.EB
Deferred soquisition coses 11 40,5900 833 24,212,266
Reinsarance share of wnexpired risk reserve 1 - w500
Dhae from related partica 4 WG9 15,683,726
Other coceivables snd prepaymeni iz 16,451,686 1190
Cash and bank halasees 13 207,941 1
TODTAL ASSETS CE]]
EQUITY AMD LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Hhape eapital 14 230,000,000 330,000,000
Setdtary resenve 15 0,203,206 0,203,206
Geneial roierve 16 - 201, K0, 000
Rensusrants rerve 16 Z, 751401 1612577
Acosirmlured losien 1
TOTAL BEQUITY 123
LIABILITIES
Pruwisian for employess’ end of service indemnity 17 &,575 008 161208
Bank bosroeings 18 158,788,008 1545590305
Insarsmze and ather parables 1% 174,765,686 13134270
Curstanidling claims reserve 1 166,686,TB1 205521 257
Incuereed but pos separsed claims reserve 11 75,359, 550 4,85, 108
Unearred premdum reserm i1 124 4484, TR 218,630,751
Mathematicsl reserve 11 252046 1,157 26
Untapired tisk resseve 1 4,688,630 5,795,710
Unallocated loss sdjustmernt sxpense mierve 11 3,752,508 6,337,177
Daedurred comemassion incors n 15,354 504 11,349 207
Lesss lishdlity ] 1 5173
TOTAL LIARILITIES 930145998 BI5TRGDG1
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,186,503,948 1 061,591,084

These financhl statements wese spproved and suthossed for fswe by the Board of Directos on

& Macch 2023 and signed on their bebalf by: >
. -

r-.
- — —
“Majid Abdulls AlSan _Abdel Muhacn Jaber
Chadrman - Director and CED

“:unﬁ;hn/mqmu fromm 1 ta 39 form an integral pert of these fimancil staboments.
7

A

e



Al-Sagr National Insurance Company (P5C)

Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2022

UNDERWRITING INCOME
(iross premium

Less: reinsurance share of gross premiom

Less: reinsurance share of ceded business premium
Met retained premiom

Met change in unearned premiom reserve

Met insurance premium

Commission earmned

Commission incurced

Oither operatiansl {Joss)/income —net

UNDERWEITING EXPENSES

Gross claims paid

Insurance claims recoversd from reimmuress

Met claims paid

Change in provision for outstanding claims
Change in reinsurer share of outstanding claims
Change in unexpired risk reserve
Change in incurred but not reported claims reserve
Change in mathematical teserve

Change in unallocated loss adjestment expense reserve
Met claims incurred

UNDERWRITING INCOME/ (LOSS)

Met investment loss

Share of losses from equity sccounted investees
Finance costs

Grenerul and sdministrative expenses

LOES PORTHE YEAR

Chber comprehensive income for the year

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR

LOSS PER SHARE

Motes

w2z 202
AED AED
633,786,529 500,476,660
(213 462,617) (165357517
(14,302,124) {26,592,437)
406,021,788 308,526,715
{70,430,337) 49,072,262
335,591,451 357,598,977
2,397,129 3,417,849
(76,816,735) (62,096,973
(7,107,482) 17,219,021
284,064,363 334,138,874
(456,431,639) (412,820,509
179,486,620 05 755 774
(276,944,B19)  (317,073,535)
38,834,701 (12,904 431)
(28,950,412) B0 416
711,158 (5,281,147}
{3,196,534) (14,006,917
&,408 a5
2,584,839 (2,253.815)
(266,954,569) (343 448.436)
17,109,794 {7, 209,564)
(625,365) (311,344)
(18,865,416) (17,505,549)
(3,839,817) {2,296,081)

’ 15521
(49,445,573) (62,5944 (184)
(49,445,573) [G2,544,084)
{0.2) (0.3

The attached explanamoy notes from 1 to 29 form an integeal part of these finandal statements,
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Al-Sagr National Insurance Company (PSC)

Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2022

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Lixss For tha year
Shase of losses from equity scoounted ivescess
Mt unrealised [gain]/Toss from tnvestmenes in financial assers as FVTPL
Diepeectation
Finance coss
Beversal for cxpects] condit loeses
Allpomnce for expected credit losses of related pamies
Reversal for expocted credis bosses of relaced partes
Proviskon fior employees’ end of service indemnity
Prowision for employeer’ end of senvice indemnity no loager reguined
Aloamnce for expected crodit losscs in other receivables and prepayments
(Crain}/loss on disposel of property and eguipmens
Interest on lease labiliny
Crain on eeemination of lease hahilioy
HMet gam oa sale of invessments in fnancis] assers ar FVTPL
Diivicdend ncame from mvesement in Snancial aases o FYTPL
Interest Imcome
Oiperating cash Nows before movements in working capital
Change in nsuranes roceivaliles
Cleange i eeinsurer share of ooranmding claijemsy
Change in retnsurer shase of Incurred bue not reporied elaims
Change in reinsarer share ol uneamed premiim reserve

in reinsuser share of mathematcal reserve

Chanye in due from selated partles

Change in other receivables and prepaymens
Change in insurance and other paynbles

Change in outsranding chubms reserve

Change in incurred bt nor r:purmer.l.lm.l reEEre
Change i unearned premium rescove

Change in mathemucal reserve

Change in unexpired risk reserve

Change in unallocabed loss sdjustment expense feserve
Change in deferred commistion mcoma

Toet cash genernted from,/ {(used in) operations
Employees® end of service bencfies paid

Mt eash genetated from) (used in) operating activities
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of properny and equijsmens

Proceeds from smie of property and equipment

Addions of Invesment In francial ssets at FVTPL

et procesds from sale of investment in financial assets st FYTPL
Davidends recedved foom imveatment in financial asses gt FVTPL
Tnaetest received

Met cash penerated from investing acthities
FINAMCING ACTIVITIES

Finance cost paid

Dhrecton’ fiee pald

Paymens of lease linhilizy

Met cash weed in financing activities.

NMet changes in cash sand cash equivalents

Crsh and cash equivalents ot | January

Cash and cash equivalents at 3] December

The sttached explanatory notes from 1 to 29 form an invegral part of these financial statements,

Motes

B o

10
24
17
7
21

21

i |

17

Fi|
i |

13

2 2021

AED AED
{45,445,575) (2,944,084)
1B, BE5 416 17,505,549
1,06, 892) 408,884
3,031,450 3,855,854
3,830,817 2,206,081
(B52,175) (244,267)
1,462,005 51,301

- §1,251,301)

950,446 1,004,339

. {3,0011,801)

1,057,995 -
(18,083) ale
THL514 447 405
(52,830) .

= 20,267

(434, 741) (198,1200
(3,453,241) 14,584,750
{26,065,892) (#4,504,115)
(52,522,001} (53.251,124)
28,950,412 B0T0,416)
4,702,113 (1026 468
(22,601, 771) (18,80, 334)
#98,762 (12,000
(16,787 567) 13,136,680
305,912 (395,022
[(4ir? 98E) 04,046
(6,370,653) [4,458,605)
43,426,884 13,161,705
(38,834, T 12,504,401
{1,505,579) 24,283 385
105,843,958 (47 689,444)
(905,170 1LM9
(1,107 08 5677 068
{2,584,833) 2253815
] 4,381 B33
18499,527 (101,144, 582)
{1, 98T.477) {HTZ 440
T, 512,050 [IT200 7 24
(481, 068) {745,489
68,500 1354
{2,749, 901) {514,916
& 483,926

434,741 198,150
3,453,241 4 584,789
T25,423 4,015,044
{3,839, 817) (2,296,081}
= (1,535,000
(2,004,610 (4,754 B10)
{5,844 627) B9
IL392.846  [114,582,051)
37,759,828 154 M42476
45,152,371 37,759,525
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Al-Sagr National Insurance Company (PSC)
MNotes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

1 LEGAL STATUS AND ACTIVITIES

Mational Insurance Company (PSC), (the "Company™) was incorporated on 25 December 1979 as a
public sharchalding company by an Emin Decree from His Highness, The Ruler of Dubsl, and is registered
with the Ministry of Economy of the United Arsb Emirates (UAE) under registration Moo (16). The
Company's sddress in Dubai is P.O, Box 14614, Dubai, UAE. The Company is 4 subsidiary of Gulf General
Investments Company (the "Parent Company™), a public company incorporated in LLA.E.

The principal activity of the Company is the writing of insurance of all eypes. The Company through
itz head office in Dubai and its branches in Duhbal, Sharjah, Abu Dhabd, Al Ain, Ras Al Khaimah and Ajman
in the LLAE

As of 2 January 2023, the Company is subject to compliance with UAE Fedenl Law No. 32 of 2021, which

UAE Fedeml Law No. 2 of 2015. The financial staternents have been prepared in sccosdance with the

of the applicable lsws and regulstions, incloding UAE Federl Law No. (32) of 2021. The

Shareholders of the Company are currently in the process of smending the statutory documents, to reflect the
changes required due 1o application of the UAE Federal law Mo, (32) of 2021,

On 31 January 2022, the UAE Ministry of Finance announced the introduction of a 9% Federal Corporate

Tax rate effective for fiscal years commencing on ot after 1 June 2023, There is no impact of this announcement
on the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022,

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

21 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in sccordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
{H&]mu@dhlﬂmﬁnﬂlﬂmﬁg&mﬂ#ﬂnﬂﬂﬂ{[&ﬂﬂ] und interpretaions thereof issued
by the Internatonal Financial Reportung Interpretation Committes and in comphance with the applicable
requirements of LLAE Federal Law Mo (32) of 2021 relating to commeredial eompanies, and of UAE Federal
Law Mo. 6 of 2007 concerning Financial Regolations of Insumnce Companies issued by the Central Bank of
United Arab Emirates and regulstion of its operations. These financial statements are prepared in Arab
Emirates Diichams {"AED"™),

The Company is in the process of complying with the requirements of the Financal Repulstions for Insurance
Compandes issued by the Central Bank of UAE pertsining to Aricle (8) of Section 2, relating 1 maintenance
of solvency margin

Going concers

These fnancial statements have been prepared on o poing concern basis, notwithsmnding the fact that for the
year ended 31 December 2022 the Company incurred a net loss of AED 49,445,573 (2021: a net loss of AED
62,944,084) snd the Company did not meet the solvency requirements. Subsequent to the year end, the
Company has submitted a business plan to the Central Bank of UAE which illestrates managements plan to
comply with the solvency requirements.

22 BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These financial staements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following which are
micasured ar fair value.

i)  financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"); and

i}  Investment propery.

The methods used to measure fair values are discussed in note 3.6,

11



Al-Sagr Nadonal Insurance Company (PSC)
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continned)
23 STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS EFFECIIVE FROM

1 JANUARY 2022
The following rebevant standards, interpretations and amendments o existing standards were issued by the
IASH:
Standard number Title N Effective date
Reference to the Concepiual Framework {Amendments o
IFRS 3 IFRS 3 1 Jamuary 022
Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended
1AS 16 U (Amend w0 TAS 16) 1 Janoary 2022
Omerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contraer
oo (Amendments 1o LAS 37) | Jacarey 20
LFES 1, TFRS 4, Annual Impeovernents o IFRS Standards 20182020 1 Jamuary 2022

IFES 16 and IAS 41

These standards have been adopted by the Company and did not have o material impact on these finsncial
EIEIEMEE.

2.4 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The impact of the new standards, interprerations and amendments that are issued, but not yet effective, up ©
the date of issuance of the Company’s financial staternents are disclosed belowt, The Company intends to adopt
these standards, if applicable, when they become effective,

IFRS 17 Insurencs Conteacts {1 Janoary 2023): Once effective IFRS 17 will seplace IFRS 4 the cament
insurance contracts sandasd and it is expected to significandy change the way the Company measuses and
repodts its insurance contracts. The ovetall objective of the new standard is w0 provide an accounting model
for insurance contracts thas is more useful and consistent for users. IFRS 17 applics 1o nsutance contracts
fincluding reinsurance contracts) an entty issues, reinsurance contracts an entty holds and investment
contracts with discretionacy participation featares an entity issues provided it also isoes insurance contmcts.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (effective for accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2023
with earlier application permitted as long as IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 are also applied)

The scope of IFRS 17 for the Company is materially consistent with that of IFRS 4, Investment contracts will
be messured under IFRS % IFRS 17 requires that contracts are divided into groups for the purposes of
recogniton and messuremment. Portfobos of contracts ase identified by grouping together contrects which have
similar risks and are manaped together. These proups are then further divided into groups based on their
Contracts which are onerous at inception cannot be grouped with contracts which are profitable st inception.
Contracts which are issued more than one year apart are not permitted to be inchaded within the same group,
altheough dhere is some relief from this sequirement for business in-force ar the date of transiton under the
transitional arrangements.
The standard introduces theee measurement approaches, of which one, the general model and the preminm
allocation approach, are applicable to the Company’s business. The main features of these models are the
measurement of on insurance contract a8 the present value of expected foture cash Aows including sequisition
costs, plus an explicie risk adjustment, remeasured at each 1eporting period using current assumptions, und
contractus] service margin ("CSMT,
The risk adjustment represents the compensation the Company requires for bearing the uncertainty abowt the
smount and tming of cash flows that artse from non-finendsl dek as the obligations under the insurance
constract are fulfilled,
The CSM represents: the uneamed profit of 2 group of insurmnee contracts and i recognised in profit or loss
as the insurance service is provided to the customer using coverage units. Coverage units are 8 messurement
of the quantum of service provided across the life of the contract and are used to measure the service provided
in the repoming perind and release a corresponding amount of profie to the income sttement. 1f a group of
contracts becomes loss-making after inception the loss is recognised immediately in the income statement.
12




Al-Sagr Natonal Insurance Company (PSC)
MNotes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

2.4 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (effective for accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2023
with earlier application permined as long as IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 are also applied) (continued)

This trestment of profits and losses in respect of seivices s broadly consistent with the principbes of IFRS 15
and IAS 37 applicable to other industries.

Ul'l.rltrﬂ:&ghmtﬂlrﬂﬁ&l&eﬂﬂ”ilpd:]u;mdﬁrnmmtmumpﬁnn:hmgnnl-ﬂugb.ﬁ.ﬂxmm
For cermin contracts with participating features the variahle fee spproach is applied, this allows changes in
economic assumptions and experience to adjust the CSM as well a3 non-economic assumptions, reflecting the
vatishle natuse of the entify's earndngs drven by investment returng. [FRS 17 requices the standard to be
applied rewospectively. Where this is sssessed o impmcticable the stnderd allows the application of a
simplified retrospective approach or a fair value approach to determine the contractual service margin. The
mieasurermnent principles set out in IFRS 17 will significantdy chanpe the way in which the Company measures
its insurance contracts and sssockated reinsuranoe contracis.

These changes will impact the partern in which profit emerges when compared to IFRS 4 snd add complexity
to valustion processes, datn requirements and assumption setting. The introduction of TFRS 17 will simplify
the presenmation of the statement of financial position. It sequires the peesentation of groups of insurance (o
reinsurance) contracts that age in an asset position separately from those in a ability position, The preseniation
of the income staternent will change maore significantly with IFRS 17 setting out how components of the
profitability of contracts are disaggregated into an insurance service result and insurance Bnance
income/expenses. 1FRS 17 also requires extensive disclosures on the amounts recognised from insurance
contracts and the nature and extent of dsks adsing fom them.

Premium allocation appeoach: The Premium allscation approach is an aptional simplified measurement model
in IFRS 17 that #s available for insurance and reinswrance contracts that meet the elighiity critena,

The Company expects that it will apply the PAA to all contescrs except for the liability line of business where
the Generl Messurement Maodel (GMM) to account for insurance contracts based on the following criteria:
" Insurance eontracts and hoss-occurring reinfurunce contmets: The coverage persod of esch contract in
the Company is one year of Jess,

Risle-attaching reinsurance contracts: The Company reagsonably expects that the resulting messurement of the
asset for remaining coverage would not differ materially from the ruullni'lppl}lngtb:n:mumﬂgpnhﬂﬂ
descabed above,

Under IFRS 17, the measurement of a group of contscts includes all of the future cash flows within the
boundary of each contract in the group. Compared with the current accounting, the Company expects that for
cermin contracts the IFRS 17 mmﬁﬁqtﬂp&mmﬂmﬂﬁnﬂtﬂmﬁﬂfuﬁhmm&
included in the measurement of existing recognised contraces, a5 opposed to future unrecogrised contracts.
The pericd coversd by the premiums within the contract boundsry is the ‘coverage period’, which i relevant
when applying a aumber of requirements in IFRS 17.

Insurance acquisition cash flows arse from the activities of selling, underwriting and sterting 2 group of
eontracts that are disectly attribumable 1o the portfolio of contracts o which the group belongs. Under IFRS
17 insurance acquisition cash flows are allocated w groups of contracts osing systermnatic and rational methods
based on the toml premiums for each group.

Under [FRS 17, only insurance sacquisiticn cash flows that ange before the recognition of the related insurance
contmacts ane recogmised 2 sepanite assets and vested for recovembility, whereas other insurance acquisition
cash flows are incloded in the eatimates of the present value of fature cash Nows as part of the mesorement
of the related insurance contracts,
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Al-Sagr National Insurance Company (PSC)

MNotes o the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2 BASIS OF PREPABRATION {continued)

2.4 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

Impact assesament = Mon-Life Insurance

Although the PAA i3 similar to the Company’s current sccounting treatment when measunng lisbilities for
remaining coverage, the following changes are expecied in the accounting for Noo-life contracts,

Changes from IFRS 4 '"“"“I | “‘ﬂ:‘%‘;
Under IFFRS 17, the Company will discount the future cash fows when measuring Increase
liabilities for incurred claims, uniess they are expeced 1 ocoor in one year or less

from the date on which the claims are ncored, The Company does not curoenthy
discount such funare cash flows,

IFRS 17 requires the fulfilment cash Aows to include 3 ok adjesment for non- Decrease
financial risk. This is not explicitly allowed for cumenty,

The Company's sccountng policy ender IFRS 17 to expense eligible insurance Decrmse
scquisition cash flows when they are incurred differs from the current practice

under which these smounts are recognised separately as deferred acquisition costs.

The Company implementution project continued through 2022 with & focus on finalising methodologies and
developing the operstional capabilities required to implement the standard inchoding data, systems and business
processes. The current focas is on embedding the operational capabilities and determining the tranaition
balenoe sheet and comparatives requited for 2023 repodting,

Sinee the implementation project is currently ongoing, management beleves thar it is impractical w determine
the amount of the effect of IFRS 17 in the current period,

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES

3.1 Insurance contracts

Classification

The Company issues contracts that mansfer either insurance risk or both insurance and financial dsks,
Contracts under which the Company accepts significant insumance risk from another party (the policyholder)
by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified ancermin future event (the insured event) adversely
affects the policvholder are classified a5 insurance contracts. Insurance risk b5 significant if an insured event
eould cause the Company to pay significant additional benefits as a result of an insured event occurring,
Insurance contracts may also transfer some fnancial rsk. Financial sk s the sk of a possible funsre

in one or more of & specified intercst rare, security price, commodity poce, foreign exchange mbe, index of
prices or races, credit mong or credit index or other varable, provided in the case of a non-financal vagable
;hudwu;ri:]:lehnm.pa&ﬁ:m-pqumﬂ:ewLGm:mumhi‘hﬂﬁ:dummcmm
it rermains classified 1s an inswance contract until all rights and obligations are extinguished or expired.
Recognition and measurement

Premiurns

Gioss premiums written reflect business incepred during the year, and exchude any fees and other amounts
collected with and calculated based on premiums, These are recognised when underwriting process B complete
and policies are ispued.

The earned proportion of premiums is recoprised as income. Premiums are earned from the date of sttachment
of sk over the indemnity period and unearned premiom is caloulated using the basis described heloar
Unearned premium reserve (UPR)

The uncarned premivm considered in the insurance contruct lishilities comprise the estimated proportion of
the gross premiums written which relates 1o the periods of insursnce subsequent 1o the statement of Anancial
position date. UPR are calenkared using the 1/365 method except for marine cargo and engineering,
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Al-Sagr National Insurance Company (PSC)
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

3  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

31 Insurance contracts {continued)

The UPR of the written premiums as tequired in the fnancial regulation and UPR for engineesing assumnes a
linear increase in rsk with the durstion of the progect such that the risk faced is 100% at the expiry of the
eontract, The rate at which the premiurm is earned is desmed to neresse at the same rate at which the risk faced
increases over the lifetime of the policy. UPR for medical and group life business are calculzted on o time

propottion basis.
Claims

Clairns incutred comprise the setlement and the internal and exiernal handling costs paid and changes in dhe
provisions for owtstanding claims arising from events occurming during the financial period and movement in
other technical teserves. Where applicable, deductions are made for salvage and their recoveries. Claims
outstanding compeise provisions for the Comparny’s estimare of the ultimare cost of sertling all claims incurned
but unpaid ar the reporting date whether reported or not, and relsted internal end external claims handling
expanse reduced by expected sabvage and other recoveries,

Claims outstanding are assessed by reviewing individual reported claims, Provisions for clims outstanding are
not discounted. Adjustments o claims provisions established in prior periods are reflected in the financial
stutements of the petiod in which the adjustments are made. The methods used, and the estimeates made, are
reviewed repalarty. Provision is also mnde for any claims incurred but not reported (CIBNR™) at the date of
statement of fnancial position using & range of smndard actuarisl claim projection technigques, based on
empirical data and current assumptons that may inclede & margin for adverse deviation as required by the new
regulations. The use of estimation and judgements in outstanding claims wnd IBNR are mentoned in note 4.

Liability adequacy vest
Provition is made for premium deficiency arising from general insurance contracts where the expecied value

of claims and expenses attributable to the unexpired pedods of policies in force at the reporting date exceeds
the uneamned prembums provision and already. recorded claim liahilites in relation to such policies. The
provision for premiem deficiency is caloalated by reference 1o classes of business which are managed together,
after taking into account the future investment return on investments held to back the uneamed premiums
and claims proviskons,

Reinsurance

The Company cedes reinsurance in the normal course of business for the purpose of Emiting i net loss
potential through the diversification of its dsks. Assers, labilities and income and expense arising from ceded
rEinsurance contracts are presented sepatately from the assets, liabilites, income and expenses from the related
insurance contracts becavse the reinsurance srrmngements do pot relleve the Company from s direct
ohligations to its policyhalders.

Amounts due to and from reinsurers are sccounted for in o manner consistent with the related nyurance
p-ulidnmdmmrfhm::whh the televint reinsurance contructs. Reinsurance premiums are deferred and
expensed using the same basis as uwsed to calculate unearned premium reserves for related insurance policies.
The deferred portion of ceded reinsurance premiums is inchuded In reinsuranes assets,
Reinsutanee assets are assessed for impairment at each reporting date. A reinsurance ssset is deemed impaired
if there is objective evidence, a5 2 result of 2n event that occurred after ies inivial recognition, that the Company
may not recover all emounts due, and that event has & relinbly measumble impact on the amounts that the
Company will receive from the reinsurer, Impairment losses an retnsurance atsets are recognited in statement
of comprehensive income in the period in which they are incurred. Profit commission in respect of reinsurance
£OMIracts is recognised on an acerual basis.

Deferred acquisition cost snd deferred commission income

For insurance contraces, the defersed acquisition cost asset represents the portion of acquisition costs which
corresponds 1o the proportion of gross premiums written that ks unearned at the reporting date. Commission
inpome related to underwiiting activities are recognised on a time proportion basis over the effective period of
policy using the same basis as described for unexpired risk premium.

I3



Al-Sapgr National Insurance Company (PSC)
MNotes to the Anancial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

53  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

31 Insurance contracts {continued)
Deferred TPA fecs

For insuranee contracts, the deferred TPA fees asset represents the poction of TPA fees which corresponds o
the proportion of net premioms written that is unearned at the reportng date.

Druring the yeat, the Company has changed its accounting policy by deferting the TD'A fees in line with the
contract boundary of the policy. This repeesents more relisble and comparable informanon in line with the
premium earning pattern of the company. The impact on prior year comparatives was not deemed material
and thus & retrospective approach hos not been adopted.

Insurance receivables and payables

Amounts due from and o policyholders, agents and reinsurers are Gnancial instruments and are included in
insurance recervables and paysbles, and not in insurance contract provisions or reEnsurAnCe F85eT,
Insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance asseta

Insuranee contract liabilifies teraards outstanding claims are made Foe all claims intimated o the Company and
still unpaid ar the statement of financial position date, in addidon for claims mcurred but not reported. The
unearned premium considered in the insurance contract Babilides comprise the estimated proportion of the
jproas premiums written which relates to the pedods of insumnce subsequent to the stitement of Anancial
position date. The reinsarers' portion towards the sbove outstanding claims, claims incurred bar not reported
end unearned premium is classified ps reinsurunce contrict assets in the fnancial statements.

3.2 Bevenue (other than insurance revenue)

Revenue (other than insurance revenue) compeses the following:

Fee and commission incoime

Fee and commisstons recesved or receivable which do not require the Company to render further service are
recognised s revenue by the Company an the effective commencement or renewal dates of the related policies.

Investment income

Investment income comprses income from fnancial assets, rental income from mvestment propertics, realised
and onreslised fair value guins or losses on investment property and financial assets at fair value through profic
ot loss (FVTPL).

Income from financial assets comprises interest ond dividend income; net guins or losses on Anancial assets
chssified az FVTPL, and reafised gains or losses on other financial assets.

Interest income §s recognised on a dme proportion basis using effective intetest rate method, Dividend income
is recognised when the right to receive dividend is esablished. Usually this is the ex-dividend dae for exquity
securities, Basis of recognition of net gains or losses on financial assets classified at FV'TPL and mealised gains
on ather fnancial asgets is described in note 3.5,

Fair value gzins or kosses on fnvestment property are included in the stntement of comprehentive income in
the period these guins or losses ane determined.

33 Property and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Iterns of properey and equipment are measured st cost less scommulated depreciation and impainment losses.

Cost inchides expenditures that are directly attributable to the sequisiion of the asser. The cost of self-
constrocted assets inclades the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly atrdbutable to
bringing the asset 1o a working condition for its intended use, and the costs of disnantling and removing the
iterns and restarng the site on which they ase located.

Where parts of an item of property or :ql.l:ipm:l:ﬂ: have different useful lives, they are aceounted for as separare

items (major components) of property and squipment.
ifh




Al-Sagr Natonal Insurance Company (PSC)
Naotes to the financial seatements
For the year ended 31 December 20522

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {contnued)

33 Propery and equipment {continmued)

Recognition and messurement {continued)

The: guin or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment is determined by comparing the procesds
from disposal with the carrying emount of the property and equipment, and s recogrused net within other
income/other expenses in statement of comprehensive Encome, When revalued assets are sold, any related
amount incladed in the revaluation reserve is transferred to remined exrmings.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property or eguipment s recognised in the carrying amount of the
iterm if it is probable thar the fumne economic benefits embodied within the part will Aow to te Company and
its cost can be measured pefiably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property and equipment are
recognised in statement of income a5 incarmed.

Depreciation

Diepreczation is based on the cost of an asset less its sesidual vahee, Significant components of individual assets
wre assessed and i 7 component has & wseful life char is different from the remainder of that asset, thar
compaonent i depreciated separutely,

Depreciation is recognised in statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of each component of an item of property and equipment.

Depreclation methods, useful lives and remdual values are reassessed ac the reportng date and sdjuseed if
appropoare. Mo depreciation is charped on eapital-work-in-progress.

The estimated useful lives for vanous categories of property and equipment are as follows:

Difice fcrure B years
Furniture and equipment B years
Motor vehicles B yoars

34  Investment property

Investment property is peoperty held either to eann rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but
not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of poods or services or for
administrative purposes. Investment property is measured at cost on initial recognition ind subsequentdy at
fair valae with any change therein recognised in statement of comprehensive income,

The Company determines fair value on the basis of valuation provided by an independent valuer who holds a
recognised and relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in the locarion and caegory of the
investment property being valued,

Cost includes expendinare that is direcdy attriburable 1o the acquisidon of the investment properry. The cont
of self-constructed investment propery includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly
artribatable o bringing the investment property to & working condition for their intended use and capstalised
boprowing costs,

353 Financial instraments

Becogniton and measurement

The Company initially recognises insurance receivables and insurance payables on the date at which they are
orginated, All other Bnancal assets and lishilities fincluding astets and Habilities designated st fair value
through profit or loss) are initially recognised on the made dare ar which the Company becomes party to the
contrzctusl provision of the instrement.

A financial assets or financial lability is initially measured ar fair valoe plus, for an item not at FVTTL,
transaction costs that are directly aredbutable to its acquisicion or issee, All recopnised fnancl aesets are
subsequently measured in their entirery at gither amortised cost or fir value
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {contnued)

15 Financial insoruments (continued)

Financial asscts

lassificat

Far the purposes of classifying financial assets, an instrument i an ‘equity instrament” if it is & non-derivative

and meets the definition of ‘equity” fod the issuer (under 1AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation) except

for certain non-dertvative putrable instruments presented as equity by the issuer. All other non-derivarive

fAnancial ety are ‘debe insrnements’,

Financial assets measured at amortised cose

A financial asset qualifies for amortised cost measurement only if it meets both of the following reo conditions:

#  The asset is held within a business model whose obpective it 1 haold sssets in order o collest contractual
cash Aows; and

*  The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dares to cash flows that are solely payments
of principle and interest an the principle amount owtstanding,

If o financial asset does not meet both of these conditons, then it is measured at fair value. The Company

makes an assessment of 2 basiness model at portfolio level as this reflect the best way the business is managed
and Information is provided to the management,

In making an assessment of whether an asser is held within & business model whose objective s to hald assets
in order w collect contracrual cash flows, the Company considers:

» Management's stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in
practics;

How management evaluates the pecformuance of the portfiolio;

Whether management's strategy focus on earning contractaal intesest revenue;

The degree of frequency of any expected asset sales;

The resson of any asset sales; and

Whether assets that aze sold are held for an extended period of time relative to thelr contractal maturity
of are sold shordy after scquisiton or an extended dme before matarty,

Financial assets measured at FVTPL

Financial assets held for trading are nor held within a business model whose objective is t hold the asset in
order o collect contractual cash flows.

The Company has designated certain financial assets at fair valoe through profit or loss because designation
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismarch, which would otherwise arise.

Dividend in these investments in equity instrements are recopnised in the ststement of comprehensive income
when the Company's dght to receive the dividends s established, unless the dividends clearly sepresents &
recovery of part of the oost of the investment.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except when the Company changes
it bustness model for managing Brancial assets.

Loans and recedvables

These assets are initially recogndsed at fair valoe plus any directly atrdbotshle ransaction costs. Subsequent o
initial recognition, these are messured ot amortised cost waing the effective interest method.

Loans and receivables compise mainly insurance receivables, due from related parties, deposits and ether
receivahles,
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

35 Financial instruments (continued)
Financlal assets {continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, balances with
the banks and fixed deposits that are subject to insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are vsed by
the Company in the management of short-term commitments.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amartised cost in the statement of Bnancial position.

Equify secuntics

Chedinary shares of the Company are classified a5 equity, Incrementnl costs directly attributable w the issue of
ordinary shares are recopnised as 3 deduction from equity.

All fnancial Eabilities {including lisbiities designated at fair value through profit or loss) are recogrised initally
an the trade date, which is the date that the Company becomes a party to the contracrual provisions of the
instrument

De-recognition of financial assets and financial lisbilities

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual dght to the cash flows from the fnancial
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risk and rewands
of the cwnership are transferred or in which the Company nether tmnsfers nor retaing sehstantally afl the
risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control over the transferred asset.

The Company derecognises a financial Fability when fts contrascroal obligation is discharged or cancelled or
expire,
Impairment of foancial assets

IFRS %' impaimment requirements use forwand loolking information under Bxpected credit loas (ECL) modsl
for the Anancial sssets measured ot amortsed cost which conslst of insurance receivables, deposits, other
recefvables, doe from related parties and cash and cash squivalents.

Megsurement of ECLs

The Company considers o broader range of information when assessing credit risk and messuring expected
credit losses, including past events, current conditions, reasonable and supportsbie forecasts thar affect the
expected collectability of the future cash flows of the instrument. In applying this forward-looking approach,
8 distinction is made between:

* financial instruments that have not deteriorated sipnificantly @ credic qualiny since instial recognition or
that have low credit nsk ("Stage 17; and

* financisl instruments thar have deterioraved significantly in credic quality since initial recognition and whose
credic msk 15 oot bow (Stage 27,

Seage 3 would cover financial assets dyat have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date. The

Company considers a debt security o have low credit risk when their credit ngk mting is equivalent to the

globally undersiood definition of “investment grade™,

*12-month expected credit losses’ are recognised for the first category (Le. Stage 1) while “lifetime expecred
credrt Iosses’ are recognised for the second catepory {le. Stape 7). Measurement of the expected credie losses
15 determined by s probabiline-weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life of the financial
instrument.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contnued)

35 Financial instruments {continued)

Financial assets (continued)

fmpairment of non-derivative Bnancial assets carried ar amortised cost

The Company assesses at each teporting date whether these is objective evidence that a financial asset or group
of financial assets carried at amortised cost are impaived. A financial asser or group of fnancial assets are
impaired when objective evidence demonstrares that & loss event has occurred afier the inital recognition of
the asset, and thar the loss event has an impact oo the future cash fows celating to the asset that can be
estmated reliably. The Company considers evidence of impairment ar both & specific and collective level.
Oibjective evidence that fnancial assets are impaired can include significant finsncial difficulty of the borrower
o issuer, defaulr or delinguency by a bomower, restructuring of an amount due to the Company on terms thar
the Company would not otherwise consider, indication thar 2 borrower or issuer will enter bankruprcy, the
disappearance of an active market {or & security, or other observable data relating 1o a group of assets such as
sdverse chanpe in the payment statss of bomowers or Bsuets, o sconomic condidons thar corelate with
defaules in the Company.

Impairment of lpans and recefvables

The Company considers evidence of impairment for loans and receivables at both a specific ssset and collective
level, All individually significant recetvables are assessed for specific impainment. All individually sipnificant
loans and receivables found nor to be specifically impaired are then collectively asdesssd for any impaibment
that has been incurred bat not yer identified. Loans and receivables that are not individually significant ape
collectively assessed for impairment by prouping together loans and recenvables with similar nsk charscterisocs,

At each reporting date, the Company assesses on 4 case-hy-case basis whether there is any ohjective evidence
that an asset s mpaired. Impairment losses on assets carned at amortised cost are measured as the difference
between the carrving amount of the finencial asser and the present value of estimated futuse cash fAows
discounted at the asser’s original effectve inferese mre

When & loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related alowance for loan impairment. Such loans are
written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss has been
detetmined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously wiitten off and /or any event resulting in a reduction
in impairment loss, decreases the amount of the provision for loan impairment in the smtement of
comprebensive inoome.

Impairment losses are recognised in the sttement of comprehensive income and reflected in an allowance
account agminst loans and adwances. Interest on impaired assets continues to be recopnised throogh the
unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event causes the amoant of impairment loss tm decrease, the
decrease in impairment loss is reversed through the statement of comprehensive income.

Impairment of nomr-fnancial assels

At each reporting date, the Campany reviews the carrying amounts of b8 non-financial assets [other than
investment property) to determine whether there is any indication of impaisment. If any such indication exdsts,
then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets gre grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
E[nmnmhnulngmﬂmmlﬂg:}rud:pmd:m of the cash inflows of other assees or CGUs

The recoverable amount of an asser or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less coats 1o sell.
Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
diseount rate that refleets current market assessmens of the tme value of money and the risks specific o the
asset or CGL,

An impairment loss [8 recognived if the carrying amount of an asser or DG exceeds ity recovernble ampuant.

Impamrment losses are recognised in statement of comprehensive income. They are allocated bt o reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated o the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the

other assets in the CGU on a pro mi basis.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

35 Finangial instruments {continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amontisation, if no impairment loss had been
pecognised.

36  Fair value measurement

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that marker participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest, A fair
value messurement of g non-financial aset mhes into account @ mackst participant’s ability to penerste
cconomic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it 1o another marker participant
that woald use the asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses valuation technigques thet an: appropriate
in the dreumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair vaboe, maximising the use of
relevant observable inpute and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All aasers and Labilites for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Anancial statements are catepodsed
within the fair valoe hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level inpur that is significant w the
fair value measurement &5 3 whole:

= Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or ebilites

= Lewvel 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant 1o the fair value
measurement i directly or indirectly observable

= Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inpur that is significant oo the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilies that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurtng basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred betereen Levels in the higrarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(ased on the keowest level input that s significant to the fir value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

37 Foreign currency ttansactions

These financial statements are presented in UAE. Dirtham (ABD), which is the functional curency. Except
a5 otherwise indicated, financial information is presented in AED, Transactions denominated in foreign
cutrencies are translated to AED at the spot exchange rates ruling at the date of the mansaction. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are cranshated tw AED ar the spot exchange rates rufing
at the date of stutement of fnancial position. Non-monetary assets and lmbilities denominated in- foreim
curtencies that ase stated at historical cost are manslated to ABD ag the foscign exchange rates rufing ar the
dame of the transaction. Foreign exchange differences arising on wranslation are recognised in the staement of
profit or loss. The assets and Habilides of foreign subsidinry and the equity of associates are wanslated at the
mue of exchange roling ar the reporting daze.

The results of associntes are trunalated at the average exchange raves for the year, The exchange differences on
the retranslation ane taken directly o the other comprehensive income.

3.8 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lesse is based on the subsance of the
prrengement at the incepoon of the leass, The amangement is, or contim, a lease if Tulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asser or assets and the armangement conveys a dght o use
the asset, even if that dghe is not explicitly specified in the aomngement.

Company as a lessee
A lessee is to be scenunt for a dght of use asset and initial lease Eability at the inception of lease. Before the

application of IFRS-16, lessee has to classify lease as an operating lease or 2 finance lease.
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5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

39  Provision

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has & present legal or constructive
obligason that can be estimated refinbly, and it is probabde that an cutflow of economic bencfits will be requared

to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows ar a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the rsks specific to the liabilicy.
The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finincs cost,

310 Employee terminal benefits

Defined benefit plan

The Company provides for staflf erminal benefits hased on an estimation of the amoont of funre benefirs that
employess have eamned in retum for their service untl their restrement. This calculation is perdformed on a
projected unit credit method.

The Company contributes to the pension scheme for nationals under the pension and social security lmar, This
is a defined contribution pension plan mnd the Company's contribution are charped to the statement of profit
ot loas in the period in which they relate. In regpect of this scheme, the Company has 4 legal and constroctive
ohligation to pay the fund contribution ss they fall due snd no obligations exists to pay the Future benefits,

311 Eamings per share

"The Company presents basic and diluted eamings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS i
calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the year anributable to ordinary sharcholders of the Company by
the weighted sverage pumber of ordinary shares cutstanding during the year, Diluted EPS i determined by
adjusting the profit or loss sttributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted sverage number of ordinary
shares outstanding for the effects of all diletive potential ordinary shares.

312 Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activides from which it may
carn revenues and incur expenses, inchoding revenues and expenses that relate to ransactions with any of the
Company’s other components. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed rogulardy by the
Company’s CECQ 10 make decisions abour resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess its
performance, and for which discrete finandial information is aveilable,

Segment results that are reported to the CEO include items directly actritutable 1o 3 segment as well as those
that can be sllocated on a ressonable basis, Unallocated items comprise mainly eorporate nssets (promanly the
Company's headgquarters), head office expenses, and value added tax assets and Habilities.

313 Investments in associates

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method. The eatrying amount of the investment
in associates Is mcreased or decreased to recognise the Company’s share of the profit or loss and othes
comprehensive income of the associate, adjusted where necessary o ensure consistency with the sccounting
314 Offsetting

Financial assets and linbilities are offset and the net amount is ceported in the statement of financial position
when, and only when, the Company has a legally enforceable might 1o set off the recognised amounts and it
intends either 1o sertle on a net basis or to realiss the asset and sertle the lability simoltansously.
Income and expenses ate presented on o net basis only when permioed under IFRSs, or of gains and losses
arising from & group of similer transsctions such a5 in the Company®s trading activiry.
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4  USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The areas of the Company's busincss conmining key sources of estmation uncertainty inchade the
measurement of inturmnce contract provisions and the determination of valustion of invesrment properties.

Measurement of insurance contract liabilities

The Cosnpany’s accounting policy in respect of insurance contract accounting is discussed in more detail in
note 3.1, The key assumptions made in respect of insusance contract kishilites are as follows:

The process used to determine the assumptions for caleulating the outstanding claim reserve is intended o
result in neutral esgmates of the most likely or expected outcome. The sources of data used o8 inputs for the
nasurnpeions are internal using detailed studies that are cartied out annually. The ascomptions are checked to
ensure thar they are consistent with observable market pesctices or other pubdished information.

The nature of the business makes it very difficule to prediet with cerminty the likely outcome of sy partieulsr
claim and the uldmate cost of notfied claims. Each notified claim is assessed on & separate, case by case basis
with due regard o the clabm circumstances, information available from loss sdjusters and historcal evidence
of the sive of similar elaims. Case estimates are reviewed regolady and are updated ss end when new
information arises. The provisions are based on informadon currently available. However, the altimate
linhilities may vary as 2 result of subsequent developments or if catastrophic events occur. The impact of many
of the iterns affecting the ubtimare costs of the loss & difficult o estimate.

The provision estmation difficultdes also differ by cles of business due to differences in the underdying
insurance contract, chkim complexity, the volume of claims and the individual severity of claims, determining
the occumrence date of a claim, and reporting lags.

The method used by the Company for provision of IBNR wakes into acoount historical data, past esomaces and
details of the reinsurance program, o assess the expecied sirxe of reinsurance recovernes, Estimmtes ane made
for the expeeted aifimare cosz of cluims incurred but not yet reponted e the reporang date wsing & mnge of
standard acmuarial claim projection techniques, based on empirical data and curment assumptions thar may
Include a margin for adverse devistion.

The sssumptions that have the greatest effect on the messurement of insurance contract provisions are the
expected loss ratios for the most recent accident years.

Insurance conteact classification

Contracts are classified as insurance contracts where they wansfer significant insurance risk from the holder of
the contract to the Campany,

There are a number of contracts sold where the Company exercises judgement about the level of insurance
dsk transferred. The level of insurance dak is assessed by considering whether there are any scenarios with
eommercial substance in which the Company is required to pay significant additional benefits. These benefits
are those which exceed the amounts payable if no insured event were to occur. These additional amounts
tnchede claims lability and sssesument costs, but exclude the loas of the ability to charge the holder of the
conteact for futere services.

Provision for outstanding claims, whether reparted or not

Considerable judgment by the mannsgement ks required in the estimaton of amounts due o the contract holders
arising from claims made onder insursnce conttacts. Such estimates are necessarly based on significant
asgumptions showt several factors involving varying, and possible sipnificant, degress of judgment ind
uncertainty and acocal results may differ from manapement's estimates resulting in future changes in estimated
linhilities,

In particular, estimates have to be made bath for the expected ultimate eost of claims reported st the date of
statenent of Bnancis] position and for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurted but not repored ['TBNE™)
at the date of statement of Anancial position. Estimates are made for the expected uitimate cost of [BNR. claims
at the reporting date using & range of standard actearial claim projection technigques, based on empidcal data
und cutrent assumptions that muy inelude a margin for adverse deviadon and are presented in note 11.

Claims requiring court or arbitration decisions are estimated individually. Independent Joss adjusters normally
estimate property claims, Management reviews its provisions for claims incarred and [BNR claims negutary.
a3
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1 USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Liability adequacy test

Ar each starement of financial position date, lability sdequacy tests are pecformed to ensure the ndequacy of
insurance contract Habilides. The Company makes use of the best esdmates of fumre contracroal cash flows
and elsims handling and sdministration expenses, a5 well as investment income from the assets backing such
liahilities in evaluatng sdequacy of the Hahility. Any deficlency is immediately charged to statement of
comprehensive income.

Impairment of financial instruments

Assesiment of whether eredie tsk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and

incorporation of forward-looking information in the measurement of Bxpected Credit Losses ("ECL"). The

Company considers a Anancial asset to be in default when:

*  The borrower is unlikely to pay its credit oblismtions to the Company in full, without recourss by the
Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

*  The financial ssset i more than 90 days past due.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial ssset has increased significantly since inirial

aned when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportsble information that i relevant

and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantiative and qualitative information and

analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and inchuding Forward-

Isarleierg indormamtion,

Impagrrment of insurance recervables

An estimate of the collectible amount of insurance receivables is made when collection of the full amount is
no Jonger probable. This determination of whether the insurance receivables are impaired, entails the Company
evaluating the credit and liquidity position of the palicy holders and the insurance and reinsumnce companies,
h]nm::lmcmrﬂymtnmifmdhtkmmi&mmmdm The difference between the
estimated collectible amount and the book amount is recognised as an expense in the profit or loss. Any
differerice bereneen the amounts actually coliected in the future periods end the amounts expected will be
recognised in the profit or loss at the dme of collection.

Relnsurance

The Company is exposed to disputes with, and possibility of defaults by, its reinsurers. The Company monitons
on & regular basis the evolution of disputes with and the strength of its reinsurers.

Impafrment of invesement {e assocfates

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carmying amounts of its investment in associntes o decermine
whether there is any indication of impairmeént. IF any indication exists, the management estimates recoverable
amount of the investment. The recoverable amount of investmment is the greater of its value in use and irs fair
value less costs to sell. Valoe in use is based on the estimated furure cash flows, discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects corrent markes assessments of the time value of money and the
riaks specific to the investment. An impairment loss is secognised if the carrying amount of investment exceeds
its recoverable smount. Impairment losses are recopnised in statement of comprehensive income. They are
allocared firse to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill recognised, and then o the remaining carrying
amount of the investment

Valuation of investmernt property

Dietenmining the fair walue requires an esomation of future cash Aows expected to arse from the invesoment
propetties, & suitable growth rate, expected occupancy and 4 suitable diseount sare in oeder to calculare the
present valoe. It is reasonably possible on the basis of the existing knowledpe that outcomes within mext
financial year that are different from estimates made could require material adjustment o the fir valoe of doe
investment property.
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4 USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS {continued)
Valuation of investment property (continued)
Valuatlon technigue and significant pnobservable inputs

The following table shows the valuston technigue wied in measuring the fair value of investment peoperty, as
well a8 the signdficant unobservable inputs used. The Company has taken the vahumtion for the fair vaboe

measurement of its investment property.

Interrelationship between key
unobservable inputs and Fair value
Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs  measurements
IIncome eapitalisation = Chynies property -The property B owned in fdl and free of
I.ppt‘biﬂ!b}'mplﬂutmnﬂ&nd mymmmt:h:m
-Bisk adjuseed discount mees ‘The tsk adpsted discount tates were
lower/ highet.
-Free of covenants, thied parey ~The propetty b subject 1o aay covenants,
eights and obligadans djphis and oblgadon.
-Expected yield mte -The expected yield e is spplied,
-Dpemnon] expenditare of the ~The propertty is subject to expenses in line
cental value with similar existing badldings.
-Sales mansnctions of similer -The property B subject 1o sales value
propertes i similar locatdon Auchmtons of surrounding properces in
the arew
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5 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Liost

At 1 Jamuary 2021
Additions

Drisposals

At 3 December 2021
A dditi

Dasposals
Termdnation of lease
Az 31 December 2022

LDlepreciaion
At 1 January 2021
Charge for the pear

Drispogals
At 31 December 2021

Charge for the year
Disposals
Termination of lese
At 31 December 2022

Carrving amounts
At 31 December 2022
Az 31 December 2021

Right of use asset

Furnimre
Right-oi-use Diffice and Maotor

Land (LT fxture equipment vehicles Total
AED AED AED AED AED AETH
76,750,806 8559897 TEFLIGE 10844942 735230 104,TEI,243
- TT4T661 0 393044 351,545 - BA93,150

. . - {686T) (447T)  (21,344)
T6,750,806 16307558 6266312 11189620 T2A,753 113255049
- - 16462 46,000 481,068

. (7,747,661)

219,606

- (121,000) (1Z21,000)

= (7,747,661)

76,750,806 8,559,897 8,505,918 11,405,082 645,753 105,867,456

- 3604168 6322075 BS4TI29 311621 18884993

- 4384537  HITTT4 607474 25069 5855854

- = - (L2398 (7,29

- TORRA05 T,159B40 0254503 3 I0DH 24 733555

- 1802084 603,938 528,13 97,292 3,031,450

- - - - (T0,583)  (70,583)

- (2,562,554) . - - (1382,554)

- 7208335 7,763,787 0,782,730 357,000 25,111,868
76750806 1351562 743131 1,622,343 288,746 80,755 3588
76,750,806  BIIRTS  LI26463 1035017 390455 AR 521404

The tabie belowr describes nature of the Company's leasing activities by type of fght-of-use assets recognised:

Mumber of Mumber of MNumberof MNumberof Nomberof
Right-of-use dghi-of-use leases with  leases with  leases with  leases with
ABEETE assets  Remaining  extension purchase variable  termination
description leased tefm opton option PAVImEDLS option
Office building
and premises 1 0 months - -
& INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES
202 2021
AED AFED
Green Air Technology LI.C., UAE (note 6.1) 16,716 16,716
Sogour Al Khaleej General Trading LL.C., UAE (note 6.2) 150,000 150,000
Al Bagr Coopesative Insurance Company, KSA (note £.3) 99, 118174 ORE

99,475,388 118,340,804
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[ INVESTMENT IM ASSOCIATES (continoed)

6.1 The Company holds 50% and the Parent Company bolds 25% ownership respectively in Green Alr
Technology LL.C., a limited liahility company incorporated in Dubai, United Arab Emirstes.

6.2 The Company holds 50% ownership in Sogour Al Khalee) General Trading L.L.C, & limited lability
company incorparated in Dubal, United Arab Emirates. The temaining 50% ownership is owned by the Parent
Company,

Although, the Company holds 50% equity and the veting aghts in thess two associaes, these are contralled
by the Parent Company. The Company's voting rights in these entities do not give it control over the
manapement of thege entities,

6.3 As az 31 December 2022, the Company hold 26% shares of Al Sagr Cooperative Insurance Compuny
(Al Sappr Cooperative"). Out of the 26% shares, the Company holds 6% shares for the benefichl interea: of
ather individuals. The Company accounts fior the 20% holding as an invesement in associate a8 the Company
has gignificant influence over Al Sagr Cooperative under the equity method as follows:

2nzz 2021

AED AED
Asac 1 January 18,174,088 135679637
Share of Iosses From equly accounted investees __(18865816) (17,505,549
As zt 31 December 00,308,672 118,174,038
Pescentape of interest 2% 20P%
Aszets 690,666,149  T46.265.421
Liabilities (562,623,532) (523,895 727)
Net assets 128,042617 222 350 604
Company's share in net assets at 207% 25,608,523 44473 939
Goodwill and ather intangibles at scquisiton 73,700,149 T3.700,149
Investment in sssociae 90308672 118174048
Revenue 471,335,642 384,070,163
MNet koss (04, 327,080)  (H7,327 746)
Company's shace of loss at 20% (18,865,416) _ (17,505,54%)

In the Extraordinary Geneml Assembly mestmg held on 13 Octobes 2022, the Beourd of Directoss of Al Sagr
Cooperative Insurance Company restructured and seduced its capital from SAR 400 million to SAR 250 million

inorder to write off its sccumulated losses. This reduction has not had an impact on the percentage held by the
Company.
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7 INVESTMENT IN FINAMNCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH FROFIT OR

LOSS (FVTPL)

2022 2021
AED AED
Investment in financial assets ar fair value theough profit or loss (FVTPL) 19,404,579 15,587 696

Following is the movement of investments at FYTPL during the yean
. | rrd 2021
AED AED
Az at 1 January 15,587 696 16,035,325
Additions 2,749,990 514916
Disposals - {463,65T)
Chanpe in fair valwe 1,065,852 {498, 848)
As a2 31 December 19,404,579 15587 696

Druring the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has purchased 981,240 shares (2021: 173,776 shares)
measured t fir value through profic or loss. All investments ane held within UA E except for investments at
FVTPL amounting o AED 0.1 million (2021: AED 0.1 million).

8 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair value hierarchy of assets measured at fair value
'F_litﬁnﬂﬂwinghhk analyses assets measured at fl.irﬂhl:_i:tth:r:pnrﬁ.ngdm*hfﬂwkwdln the fair valos

hierarchy into which the fir value messurement, #s mentoned i note 3.6, is estegorised. The amounts are
based on the values secognised in the statement of financial positdon.

3l December 20073 Level 1 Level 3 Total
AED AED AED

Einsncial agsets

Invesmment in financial nssets ar FVTPL (note 7) 18,606,532 T98,047 19,404,579

Non-financial assers

Investment property (note 5 - 157,931,895 157,531,895
16,606,532 158,729,942 177,336,474

Eimaagtol asisls

Iovestment in financial assets wt FVTPL (note T) 14,793 563 794,133 15,587 696

Diwfinamotal aestr

Investment propesty (note . 157,931 B95 157,931

14,793,563 158726028 173,519,591

9 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

2022 2021
AED AED
As ae 3 Diecember 157,931,805  157.9%1 895

Investment property compnses of & property in Al Barsha First, Dubal. As at 31 December 2022, the fair value
of the property is based on valmtion performed by aceredited independent valuess who ase specialists in
valuing these type of investment property.

The valuation model used are in sceordance with recommended industey practice. The fair vahe of the
investment property was estimated based on fair valeation techniques and assumptions with reference to recent
rental value of stmilar properties 10 an active market,
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I INSURAMCE RECEIVABRLES

Due from policy haldets

Due from insurance and reinsurance companies
Due from apents and brokers

Drue from garages

Expecied credit losses

Movement in the expected credic losses is as follows:

As ar | Janoary
Reversal during the year ®
As at 31 December

2022 2021

AED AED
24,000,840 21,691,990
114,667,703 109,515,960
151,672,135 117,490,272
22229002 11348747
569,880 260,046,969
(59,999,855) (60,852 ,050)
252,570,025 199,194,030
2022 2021

AED AED
60,852,030 61,006,317
(852,175) (244, 28T)
50,999,855 60,852,030

*During the year, the management have written off AED 832,175 (2021: AED 244,287) of receivables and

resultuntly the provision related o it has been written off,

11 TNSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES AND REINSURAMCE CONTRACT ASSETS
Movement in outstanding claims reserve is analysed as follows:

2022

Asar ] January

Settled during the year
Provision made during the year
As az 31 Decemnber

2021

Asac 1 January
Provision made during the year
As at M December

Movement in [BMR reserve is analysed as follows:
202

As ar 1 Jammry
Met movement dunng the year

As gt 3 December

an

As ar 1 January
Provision made during the vear
As ar 31 Decembser

Gross  Reinsurance Meit
AED AED AED
205,521,572 (156,94%,806) 48,571,766
(456,431,639 179,486,820 (276,944,819)
417,596,848  (150,536,408) 267

166,686,781  (127,999.30d) 38,687,367
192617171 (148,879.390) 43,737,781
(412,329,309 95,755,774  (317,073,535)
425733710 (103,826,190 321,907,520
205,521,572 (156,049,806) 48571 766
Gross  Relnsunince Met
AED AED AED
74,865,138 (26,313,057) 48,552,081

1 TO2113 1

T a4 51T
SO581.753 (16036589 34,545,164
145 fl | 217
T4.865,138  (26,313,057) 48,552,081
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11 INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES AND REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS

(continued)

Movement in uneamed premiom reserve is analysed as follows:

202z Gross  Reinsurance Net
AET AETY AED

As at 1 Januasy 218,630,722 (73,880,741) 144,749,981

Provislon made during the year 324 444,710 (96,482,512) 227,962,198

Provision released during the year (218,630,722) 73,880,741 (144,749,981

Ax at 31 Decernber 34 A44TI0 (96,482 813) 227962198

2021

As at 1 January 266,320,166  (S4980,405) 211,330,761

Provision made during the year 2IR630,722  (TABBOT41} 144,740,981

Provision relessed duding the yeir {266,320, 166) SAOERA05 (211 330.76T)

As ar 31 Decesnber BAWTH  (TAEB0T4T) 144,749,981

Mathemnatical reserve represents amounts set aside o meet the agprepate amount of the labilides of the
Company in relation to its long-term life business as at 31 December 2022

Movement can be analysed as follows:

2022 Giross  Reinsurance Met
AED AED AED
As st 1 Janupry 1,157,216 (1,149.880) 7,336
Movement during the yer {905, 170% BU8, TH2 {6, 408)
As at 31 December 252,046 (251,118) 928
2021
As at 1 January 1,146,197 (1137870 B327
Movement during the year 11,009 (12,0100 =51y
As at 31 December L157.216 (1,149,880 7336
Movement in unexpired rsk reserve is analysed sy follows:
2022 Gross  Reinsurance Met
AED AED AED
As ar 1 January 5,795,710 (395,922) 5,399,788
Provision made during the year (1,107, 080) 395,922 (711,158)
Az at 31 Decernber 4,688,630 - 4,638,630
201
As ar 1 January 118,641 - 118,641
Provision made during the year 5,677,069 {393,920 5.2B1,147
As at 31 December 5,795,710 (395,922) 5399768
Movement in unallocated boss adjustment expense reserve is analysed as follows:
. | et Grosas  Reinsurance Met
AED AED AED
MAs 2t 1 January 6337177 = 6,337,177
Provision made during the year (2,584,83%) - (2,584,839)
As ¢ 31 December 3,752,338 - 3,752,338
2021
As ar 1 Janumary 4,083,362 - 4083 362
Provision mads during the year 2253815 - 2253 815
As at 31 December 6337177 . 6337177
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i INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES AND REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS

{continued)

DEFERRED ACQUISITION COSTS

Asat ] fanuary

Expenses incurred during the year

Less: amorisation charged to the statement of comprehensive income
As ot 3 Decemnber

DEFERRED COMMISSION INCOME

As at 1 January

Commission reocived during the pear

Commission income réleased to the statement of comprehensive income
As at 31 Decemnber

1z OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

Aecrued interest income
Prepayments

Staff advances

Dieferred TPA fees

Oither recefvables

Less: Expected eredit losses

13 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand

Bank balances:

Current aocownts

Fixed deposits
Less; Expected crediz lodses

2022 2021
AED AED
2412266 37,338,946
93,604,302 48970293
T o7
40,999,833 24212266
2022 0
AED AED
11,349,207 6,967,369
36,402,816 27,799,687
(32,397,129) (23,417,847
15,354,894 11,349 207
2023 2021
AED AED
1,254,339 (30,692
525,003 2,098,447
137,731 358104
7,617,026 -
8,293,888 B.6D2 381
(1,376,301) (336, 306)
16,451,686 11,115,028
022 2021
AED AED
77,834 73,053
10,491,956 1,356,605
197,405,468 190,914,063
(33,981 (33,981}
207,941,277 192,308,830

Fixed deposits with banks as at 31 December 2022 include AED 1003 million (2021: AED 10.3 million)
deposited in the name of the Company to the order of the Ministry of Economy and Trade of the Linited Amb
Emirates as required by the Federal Laow Mumber (6) of 2007 relating 1o Central Bank of United Arsb Emirates,

Fixed deposits amounting to AED 1685 million (2021: AED 1584 million} are under Ben in mespect of bank
credit facilities granted to the Company. All fixed deposits with banks mature within different periods not
excoeding one year from the date of deposit and carry interese eates berween 1.2% o 4.9% (2021: 1% w0 3%)
per annum, Cash and cash equivalents for the porpose of statement of cash flows are analysed as follows:

Cash and bank balanees

Bank bormowings (mote 1E)
Cash and cash equivalents

2022 2021

AED AED

207,941,277 192,309,830
906) (154

49,152371  37,759.525
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14 SHARE CAPTTAL

2022 221
AED AED
Issued and fully pasd 230,000,000 shares of AED 1 each 230,000,000 230 000,000

15 STATUTORY RESERVE

In aceordance with the UAE Commerciol Companies Law Mo, 32 of 2021 {dee "Laa"} and the Company's
Articies of Association, 107 of the profit for the year should be wansferred to legal reserve. The Company
may resalve o dscontinue such transfers when the reserve totals 5004 of the paid-up share eapital The reserve
is not available for distribution except in the circumatances stipulated by the Law. Dunng the year, no tranafes
was made to the statutory reserve [2021: Nil),

1 GEMNERAL AND REINSURANCE RESERVE

General reserye

The general reserve is established throogh transfers from peofit for the year as recommended by the Board of
Diirectors and approved by the Shareholders at the Annoal General Meeting. The reserve 18 distriburable based
on 1 recommendation by the Board of Directors approved by a Shareholders' resolution. During the year o
transfess were made to the geneml reserves (R021: Nil). On recommendation of Board of Directors,
Shareholders have approved, in annual gpeneral meeting held on 21 April 2022, rranafer of AED 20 million
from general reserves 1o setained earnings 2021: AED 30 million).

Beinsurance reserve

In accordance with Ceneral Bank of United Arab Emirares’ Board of Directons® Decision Mo, 23, Article 34,
an amount of AED 1.14 milion based on the reinsurance share of premium at a mte of 0.5% was tansfermed
from retained earnings to reinsurance reserve (2021: AED 1 million). The reserve is not available foe
distribution, and will not be disposed of withowt prior approval from Central Bank of United Arsb Emirates.

17 PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEES' END OF SERVICE INDEMNITY
Movement in the provision is as follows:

2072 2021

AED AED
A ar 1 Jamuary 7,612,039 10,401 343
Charge for the year D50, 246 1,094 939
Paid during the yeas {1,987.477) (BTZ 44}
Reversal during the year - {3,011,801)
As at 31 December 6,575,008 7612038
18 BANE BORROWINGS

2022 2021

AED AED
Bank overdrafis 158,788,906 154,550,305

The Company has banlk facilities in the form of overdrafts payable upon demand and bearing interest rnging
from 1.25% to 5.15% per annum (2021: 1.25% m 3.65%). These facilities are secured by lien an fred deposits
amounting o AED 168.5 million {2021: AED 1584 millon). The bank overdraft limit provided under the
facilides i AED 166 million (2021: AED 156 million}.
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19 INSURANCE AND OTHER PAYABLES

D to palicy holders
D to insurance and reinsurance companies
D to agents and brokers

Due to garages
Dither payubbes

Orther payables can be analysed as follows:

Accroed expenses and payable to suppliers
VAT payable
Orthers

20 LEASE LIABILITY

.| Far 2021
AED AED
61,091,390 29,374 582
65,238 367 56,875,472
12,783,805 6,857 486
18,134,597 21,408,933
17,521,427 17,826229
174,760,586 131 442702
2022 2021
AED AFD
11,369,978 B 721,185
3,973,047 2RITTTS
2,178,402 6,267.266
17521427 17,826,229

The Company has leases for the premises, head office building and its branch offices s at 31 December 2022
With the exception of shoet-term leases and leases of low-value underlying assets, each lease is reflected on the
stutement of financial position a5 @ right-of-use asset and 2 lease lability, The Company classifies its rght-ol-
use d85et iy 4 Consistent manner to i property and equipment (sée note 5). Future minimum lease payments

ar 31 December 2022 were a8 mentioned belowes:

Within 1 year 1-2years  2-3 years Total
AED AED AED AED

31 December 2023
Lease payments 1,503,608 - = 1,503,608
Finance charges (30,668) . - (30,668)
Met present values 1,472,940 - - 1,472,940
il December 2021
Lense payments 4,754 10 4,253,608 - 9,008 418
Finance charges (279 0B6) (104, 155y - {383,245)
et present valses 4 475,724 4,149 440 - 8,625,173

The Company has elected to account for shom-term leases and leases of low-value assets using the pracical
expedients. Instead of recopnising a right-of-use asser and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are
recogrised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-Ene basis over the lease verm. Operating lease payments
represens rentals payable by the Company for its branch offices, At reporting date, the Company has
outstanding commitments under non-cancellable aperating leases, which fall due us follows:

Less than one year

2022 2021
AED AED
188,905 575,938




Al-Sagr National Insurance Company (PSC)

MNotes 1o the Anancial staterments
For the year ended 31 December 2022

21 NET INVESTMENT LOSS

2022 2021

AED AED

Allocated general and administrative expenses to investment (10,766,046) (8,727,636
Grain / {loss) on revaluaton of finencial assets ar FVTPL {note T) 1,066,892 (WO, BER)
Rental income from investment property 5,830,661 4112500
Interest ineome on Axed deposits 345324 4,564 TEG
Dividend income from financial assets at FVTPL 434,741 198,120
Net jmin on sale of financial assets at FVTPL & 20,269
Chther expenses (TB5,767) .
Crain on terminacion of lease Babilicy 92,830 .
Gain/ (loss) on disposal of property and equipment 18,083 {518)
(625,365) (311344

Mo social contrbation made by the Company o be included in unallocated general administrative expenses

during the year (2021: Nil).
A GEMERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPEMNSES

Loes fior the year has been ardved at after charging the following expenses which are inchuded in the general

and administrative expenses and unallocated general and administrative expenses.

2022 021
AED AED
Depreciation of property and equipment (note 5) 3,031,450 5,855,854

23 LOSS PER SHARE

Basic loss per share are calculated by divading the loss for the year attribatable 1w shascholders by the weighted

average mumber of shares outstanding at reporting date.

2022 2021
Loss for the year (AED) (49445,573) (62944084
Directors” fiee paid (AED) - (1,535,000
Laoss for the year sttrfbutable to equity holders (AED) (49,445,573)  (64,479,084)
Weighted average number of shares 230,000,000 230,000,000
Loss per share (AED) {0-2) 0.5

24 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company enters into transactions with companies and entties that fall within the definiton of o relared
party as contained in International Accounting Stundasd (LAS) 24: Related Party Disclosures. Related partics
compriss companics and entities under common ownership and/or common management and control,
shaceholders, directors and key management personnel of the Company, their dose family members and
entitics controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by such parties. The Compeny’s management
believes that the terms of such ransactions are not significantly different from those that could have been

obtained from third parties,
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24 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

At reporting date, armounts due from elated parties were as follows:

Due fvom related parties
Due from shareholders
Expected credic Insses

Movement in the expected credic Josses can be analysed a5 follows:

As ar 1 Jaouary

Charpe during the year
Reversal during the year
As at 31 December

2022 2021

AED AED
105,398,665 104,752,832
00,709 1,038,574
{91,569,685) (90,107,680
14,629,709 15,683 726
140,133 0l 264
032 201
AED AED
90,107,680 91,307 680
1,462,005 51,301

- {1,251,301)

EEE ‘?IJI]EI?IEB'D

These amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or received.
Droring the year, the Company entered o the follewing transactions with related parties:

CGross premiums
Claims paid

Compensation of key management personnel
Salaries and benefits

2022 2001
AED AED
2,728,141 32909
(393,122) {863,458)
4,063,032 3,004 095

£l
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Al-Sagr National Insurance Company (PSC)
MNotes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

25 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

Guarantees
2022 2021
AED AED
Letters of puarances 12,611,698 15,831,735
Contingent labilities

The Company in common with other insurance compariies, is involved as defendant in & number of legal cases
in respect of i3 underwriting sctivities. A provislon i made in respect of each individus] case where it is
probable that the outoome would redult in a loss w0 the Company in terms of an outflow of economic resources
and afe lishle estimate of the amount of cutflow can be made.

Commitments

As at ) Seprember 2022, Al Sagr Cooperative Insurance Company (sssociate) had an outstanding commitment
of 15 million Saudi Riyals in respect of puschase of investments relating to munal fund snd cost towarnds
implementation of new softanre (31 December 2021: B.8 million Saudi Riyals).

) CAPITAL RISKE MANAGEMENT

The Company's objectives when managing capital are

* o comply with the insurance capital requitemnents required by UAE Pederal Law Mo, & of 2007, The
Company mansges its capital on g basis of its minimuom regulstory capital position presented in the table
bl

* o safepuard the Company’s ahbility 10 continue as n going concern so thar it can continee 1o provide
returns for sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

* o provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing insurance contracts commensurately with the
lewel of risk.

The table below summarises the Minimum Capital Requirement, Minimum Guarantee Fund and Solvency
Capiral Requirement of the Company and the toral capinl held 1w meer these solvency margins as defined in
the Financial Remulatons for Insumance Companies ssued by the Central Bank of UAE. In sccordance with
Circalar No. CBUAE/BSD/N /2022 /923 of CBUAE dated 28 February 2022, the Company has disclosed the
solvency position for the immedsately preceding period a5 the cument year solvency position is not yet finalised.

(Unsudived)

30 Sepiember

2022

AED

Minirmum Capital Requirement (MOR) 1h0, MO, D
Solvency Capiral Requirement (SCH) 130,644,000
Minimum Guarantee Fund (MGF) 82,925,000
Bazic Own Funds 55,704,000
MCR Solvency Margin = Deficit (44,206,000 )
SCR Solvency Margin — Deficit (74,540,000}
MGF Sobwency Margin = Defickt {27,221,000)

As per Article (B) of Section 2 of the Financial Regulations for Insumnce Companies issued by the Central
Bank of UAE, the Company shall at all tdmes comply with the requirements of Solvency Mangins, As at
30 September 2022, the Company had minimum capital, solvency capital and minimum guarantee fund deficits
of AED 443 million, AED 749 million snd AED 27.2 milion as compared to requirements of AED 100
million, AED 1306 million and AED 82.9 million respectively.
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25 RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company issues contracts that transfer either insamnce risk or both insurance and financial dsks. The
Company does not issue contracts that transfer only financial risks. This section summarises these dsks and
the way the Company manages them:

281  Governance framework

The primary abjective of the Company’s risk and financial management framewnck is to protect the Company's
Mdﬂcts&mnnmﬂnuﬂnduthtmmh-bh:ﬁummdrh:mﬁmﬂﬂpufmuuﬁ#ﬂm
Management recognises the critical importance of having efficient and effecove fsk management systems in
place.

28.2  Risk management framework

The Board of Disectors has overall respongibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s sk
management framework. The Board has esmblished the Audit Committee, which is responsible for developing
ind monitoring the Company's dsk management policies. The committee reports regulardy o the Board of
Direcooes on s activities.

The Company's ik mansgement policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and o monitor rsks and adherence w Bmits. Risk
management policdes and systems are reviewed regulardy o reflect chonges in market conditions and the
Company’s scivities.

The Company's Audit Committes oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s ask
management policies and peocedures and reviews the adequacy of the fsk management framework in relation
to the risks faced by the Company. The Company’s Audit Committee is sssisted in its oversight role by Internal
Audit Internal Aodit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of dek management contnols and procedures,
the results of which are reported 1o the Audic Commiree,

28.3  Capial management framework

The Compeny has an iternal risk monagement framewaork for identifying rsks 1o which exch of its business
unirs and the Company as a whaole is exposed, quantifying their impact on economic capital

284  Regulatory framework

Regulators are prmarily interested in protecting the dghts of the policyholders and shareholders and monitor
closely w ensure that the Company Is satsfactorlly managing affaics for their benefie. At the sasme dme, the
regulators are also interested in ensuring that the Company maintins an appropriate solvency position to meet
unforeseen babilities arising from cconomic shocks or natural disastess.

The opertions of the Company are also subject to regulatory requirements withan the LLAE. Such wgulations
not only prescribe spproval and monitoring of activities, but also impose certain restrictive provisions m
muinimise the risk of defaole and hunlvmcymmeplunﬁheuummmmpmmm unforeseen liahilities
as these arise,

285 Asget Hability management (ALM)

Financizl risks asise from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are exposed
to general and specific market movements, The main rgk that the Company faces due to the nature of s
investments and Habilities is interest e nsk and equity price risk. The Company manages these positions
within an ALM framework that has been developed by management to achieve long-term invesiment retums
in excess of its obligations wder insurance and investment contracts. The Company’s ALM is also invegrated
with the manupement of the fnancial dsks associated with the Company's other fnancial assets and liabilities
not directly associated with insurance and imvestment Babilites.

The Company’s ALM {currently with the Risk comrmitees) also forms an integrl part of the insarance sk
management policy, to ensure in each pedod sofficient cash fow is available 1o meer Gabilities adsing from
Insurance.
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28 RISE MAMAGEMEMT (continued)
285  Asset lability management (ALM) {continued)
Insurance risks

The Company accepts insurance rsk through ity written insurance coniracts. The Company is exposed m
uncertainty surrounding the uming, Fequency and severity of claims under these contracts. The Company
writes the following types of general insumnce and life insurance contracts:

General insurance conttacts include Lishility insurance, Property insurance, Motor insurance, Fire insurance,
Medical insurance, Marine insurance and Enpineering insursnce contracts. Life insurance contracts inchade
Group life and Credit life insurance contracts,

The principal sk the Company faces under insursnce contmcts is that the actusl cluims and benefit payments
or the tming thereok, differ from expectations. This is infleenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims,
acral benefin paid and subsequent development of long-tesm elaims. Therefore, the objective of the Campany
Is to ensure that sufficient reserves ape available to cover these abilites.

The above risk exposure is mitgated by diversification actoss a large portfolio of nserance contracts. The
wariability of nsks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting steategy puidelines,
a8 well a8 the use of reinsumnce arrangements. The Company only sues ghot term indumnce contrects in
connection with properey, motor, marine and casualry risks. Tweo key elements of the Company's insurance
risk management frumework are its underwritng strategy and reinsurance strategy, a5 discussed belows

Underwniting strategy
The Company’s underwriting strategy is to build balanced portfofios based on a large number of similar risks.
This reduces the varishility of the portfolio's cutcome.

The underwriting strategy is set out by the Company that esmblishes the classes of business 1o be written, the
territories in which business is to be wmtten and the industry sectors in which the Company is prepared 1o
underwrte. This seategy B8 cascaded by the business units o individusl underwriters thmooph detailed
underwniting authorities that set out the limits that any one endersster can wiite by line size, class of business,
territony and industry in order to ensure spproptiate isk selection within the portfolic. All genenal insueance
CONLIACEs cxcept matine and property, are annual n nuture and the underwriters have the dght o refuse renewal
or to change the terms and conditions of the contract ar renewal.

The principal risk the Company faces under insurnnce contracts is that the actual claims and benefits payments
ar the tming thereof, differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims,
actual benefits paid and subsequent development of long-term claims, Therefore, the ohjective of the Company
is 1o ensure that sufficient reserves are available o cover these labilites.

The above itk exposure i3 mitgated by diversification across a lagge portfolio of insurance contmces, The

variahility of dsks is also improved by careful selection and implemnentation of undervwriting sorategy guidelne,
as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements.

Frequency and amoumnits of claims

The Company has developed their underoriting steategy o diversify the type of insuranee feks accepred and
within each of the categories to achieve sufficiently laspe populations of risk to reduce the varability of the
expected putcome. The frequency and amounts of claims can be affected by seveml facton. The Company
underwrite mainly property, motor, casualty, medical and marine risks, These ate segarded 18 short-term
insurance controcts as claims are normally advised and settded within one year of the insured event mking place.

Property

Property insurance covers 4 diverse collection of dsks and therefore property insumnce contracts are
subdidded Into four daks groups, Bre, business Bterruption, weather damage and theft. These contracts are
underwritten by reference to the commescial replscement value of the properties and contents insured. The
cost of rebuilding properties, of replacement or indemnity for contents and time mken to restant operations
for business intesruptions are the key factors thar influence the level of claims under these policies.
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3%  RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

285  Asset Hability management (ALM) (continaed)
Insurance riaks (coatinued)

Property (continued)
The greatest likelihood of significant losses on these contracts arses from storm, Sood damage or other

weather-related incidens,

Mavor

Moot insurance contraces are designed to compensate policies holders for damage suffered to vehicles,
disability to third parties arising throogh aceidents and fire o theft of their vehicles. Underwriting Emits and
puidelines are in place to enforce sppropriate rish selection criteris.

The level of court mwards for deaths and o injured parties and the replscement costs of motor vehicles are the
key factors that influence the level of clims.

Marine

Martine msurance i designed to compensate contract hodders for damage and lishility arising theough boss or
damage to marine craft and sccidents at sea resulting in the total or parial loss of cargoes.
For marine insurance, the main risks are loss or demage to madne craft and sccidents resulting in the torl or

partial loss of camgoes, The underwritng strategy for the matine class of business is to ensure that policies are
well diversified in terms of vessels and shipping routes covered,

Clagualty

For casualty class of business, such a8 workmen's compensation, personal sccident, general third-parry Babilicy
and loss of money, the extent of loss or damage and the potentdal count awards are the main factors that
intfleence the level of elaima.

The Company manage these rsks through thelr onderwriting stratepy, adequate reinsurance armungements sod
anuhmdum:hmdﬁngﬁ!mﬂmumglmuﬁlmﬂnpﬂmmuuﬁudﬂumuhgmnﬂ
diversified in terms of type and amount of nsk. Underariting limits are in place to enforce appropeiate risk
selections,

The Company proactively manages and pursues early settlement of clums o reduce their exposure o

unpredictable developments. The Company have adequate réinsurance armangements fo peotect their financial
viahility against such chims for all elasses of business. The Company have obfained adequate non-
innate reinsumnce cover for all classes of business to lmit losses to an emount considered appropriste

by the management.

Medical

Medscal selection is part of the Company's underwriting procedures, whereby contributions are charged to
reflect the heslth condition and family medical histary of the applicants. Prcing is hased on assumptions, such
as mortality and persistency, which consider past experience and cutrent trends.

Contracts including specific risks and guarantees are tested for profitability according to predefined procedurses
before approval.

Products are réviewed by the business units on an snnual basis © confirm, or otherwise, that pricing
assumptions remain appropriate. Analysis is performed on earnings and lishility movements w0 understand the
source of any material vagaton in scoual resalt from what was expected. This confirm the appropriateness of
assumption and in underenting and pricing.

Concentration of msk

The Company's underwriting activities are cartied out in the United Arab Emirares and other Middle Bast
countres,
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28 RISKE MANAGEMENT (continued)

28.5  Asset liability management (ALM) {continued)

Reinsurance strategy

The Company reinsures a portion of the insurance faks it underwrites in order to control its exposure to losses
and protect capital resources. Ceded retnsurance conmins credit osk, as discossed in the Anancial dsk
management aote. The Company has o Reinsurance department that i responsible for sesting the minimums-
security catena for scceptable reinsurance and monitoring the purchase of reinsurance by the business wnits
agminst those criterin. The department monitors developments in the reinsurance programme and its ongoing
adeduaacy.

The Company buys 2 combination of proportionate and non-proportionate rensamnce tresties to reduce the
ner exposure to the Company. In addigon, underwriters are allowed o buy faculative teinsurance in certain
specified circumstances. All purchases of facultanve reinsurance are subject o business unit pre-approval and
the totl expenditure on faculsme retnsurance is monttored regulady by reinsurance depastment,

Financial risk

The table below sets out the classification of each cliss of financial assets and labilities along with their Fair

values, For Bnancial assets and babilities carded at amortised cost, management believes that the amortised
cost of those instruments approximates to their fair values.

At 31 December 2022 FYTPL Amortised cosi Todal
Linancial zasews AED AED AED
Invesernent in Enancial assess at FVTPL (note T) 19,404, 5749 - 19,404,579
Insurance receivables (nowe 10) - 252 570,025 152,570,025
Droe from related parties {note 24) - 14,629,709 14,629,704
Other receivables (excluding prepayments) (nore 12) - 15,926,681 15,926 683
Cash and bank balances (note 13) - 207,941,277 207,941,277
19,404,579 491,067,694 510,472,273
Ei il Habilic
Bank borrowings (note 18) - 158,788,906 158,788,906
Insurance and other payables (note 19 - 174,760,586 174,760, 586
Lease liabilicy (note 20) - 1,472,540 1,472,940
- 335031432 335031432
Jie 31 December 2021
p el Ak
Investment in financial sssets at FVTPL (note T) 15,587,696 - 15,587,696
Insursnce receivables (note 100 - 199,194,529 199,194,939
Due from related parties (note 24) - 15,683,726 15,683,726
Orher receivables (excluding prepayments) (note 1) 9,020,581 9,020,581
Cash and bank balances (note 13} - 192,300 830 192 3048 830
15,587 696 416200076 431 796,772
Fiiiciad Sabilini
Bank borrowings (note 18} - 134550305 154,550,305
Insurance and other payables {note 15 - 30,342 702 131,342 702
Lense liability {nos= 20) B,625173 B625173
204 518,180 204 518,180
The Company has exposore to the following primary tidks from its use of Bnancisl insramens and operations:
i) Coedit msk;
) Liguidiey risks
(i) Markes risk; and
(v Opermtonal ok
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28 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

285  Asset lability management (ALM) (continued)
Financial risk (continued)

Thiz note presents informaton sbout the Company’s exposure to each of the sbove rsks, the Company’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company’s management of capital.
Further quantitative disclosures are included throuphour these financial statements,

i} Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk thar one party 10 2 financial insrument will cause s fnancial loss o the other party by
failing to discharge an obligation. Compliance with the policy is monitored and exposuses and breaches are
regulacly reviewed for pertinence and for changes in the dek environment. For gll classes of fnancial assers
held by the Company :h:muummtmil:uﬂ{upnmmthrﬂmpmﬂuthr:m&nﬁﬂmudﬂdﬂuﬂiu
the financial statements st the repoming date. Reinsurance is piaced with reinsurers” spproved by the
manxgement, which are generally intermational reputed companies,

To minimise its exposure to significant losses from reinswrer insolvencies, the Company evaluates the finsncial
conditon of its reinsurer’s and monitors concentrations of credit dek arsing from similar geographic regions,
activities or economic characreristics of the reinsurers.

At each reporting date, management performs an assessment of credivworthiness of reinsurers’ and updates
the reinsurance purchase strategy, ascertaining suitable aliowance for impairment if required.

Exposure to credit msk

The carying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure (o
credic sk ar the end of the reporting perind was as follows:

2022 2021
Financial assets AED AED
Insurance receivables (pote 100 252 570,025 199,194,935
Due from related parties (note 24) 14,629,709 15 G683 726
Oicher receivables (exchoding prepayments) (note 17) 15,926,643 9.020,581
Bask balances (note 13} 207863443 102235777

490,989,860 416,136,023

Ageing of insurance receivables is a8 follows, mansgement has booked an ECL of AED 59990855
(2021: AED 60,852,030} against the tol exposure indicated below:

=0 o1 o 180 181 e 270 IT1 1o 365 > 565
days days days days days Total
AED AED AED AED AED AED
2022 131,702,054 35,292,183 17,068,573  0,604724 118,802,346 312,569,880
2021 95756612 22808604 35882129 18035357 87564267 260,046,969

i) Liquidity risk

Liquidrty nsk is the nisk that the Company will encounter difficolty in meeting obligations associaced with its
financial lighilides. Liquidity requirements are monitored on a daily basis and management ensures thae
sufficient funds are available 1 meet any commimments as they arise,
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2 RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

8.5  Asset Hability management (ALM) {continued)

Financial risk {continued)
ii)  Liquidity risk (continued)
Maturity profiles

The table below summarises the marurity profile of the financial Babilities of the Company based on remadning
undiscounted contractual obligations, Repayments which are subject to notice are treated as if notice were

be given.
Carrying  Contractual Less than 180 days to 1
amount cash fows 180 days year
31 December 2022 AED AED AED AED
Linhilities
Bank borrowings (note 18) 158,788,906  (158,788,906) (158,7T88,506) -
Insurance and other payables (note 19) 174,769,586 (174,769,586) (174,769,586) -
Lease liability (noee 20) 1A72,940 (LATZ,940) = {1AT2.940)
Total Liabilities 315,031,432  (335,031,432) (333,558,492) {1,472,940)
31 Decembes 2021
[ it
Bank botrowings (note 18) 154,550,305  (154,550,305)  (154,550,205) .
Insarance and other payables {nowe 19)  131,342702  [131,342702)  (131,342.702) %
Lease liability (note 20) BS25,173  (B625,173) - [(8,635,173)
Total Lishilities 204 518,180  (294,518,180) (285893007 (8,625,173

iid) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of a financisl instrument will Auctoane as a result of changes in market
prices, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual security, or its issuer, or factots
affectng all secutities traded in the mutker. The Company lmits macket fisk by maintaining s diversified
portiolio and by continwous monitoding of developments in local equity and boad markets. In addition, the
Company actively mondtors the key factors that affect stock and bond market movements, incloding analysis
af the operational and financial performance of investees.

a) Currency risk
Currency sk is the fsk that the valoe of a financial instrument will fuctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates and arises from financial instruments denominated in a foreym currency. The Company's functional
currency is the AE Dithamn. The Company has exposures in USD, which is pepged with AED and the
Company’s exposure to currency risk is imited to that extent, since almost all reinsurance arrangements are
denominated in LISD).

b) Interest rate sk

Intesest rate risk is the risk thar the value o futere cash Aows of 4 Anancial instrement will fuctuate becawse
of changes in market interest rates, The Company's exposure to intesest rate pelates to its bank deposits. Ar 31
Drecember 2022, fixed deposits camried nterest rated mngring from 1.2% to 4.9% (2021 1% to 35%) per snmom
If interest rates had been 100 basis points lower throughout the year and all ather variables were held constnt,

the Company's net profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 would decrease by approximately
AED 1.97 million (2021: AED 1.91 million). Similarly increase in interest by 100 basis points would result in

equal and opposite effect on profic for the year.
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28 RISK MAMAGEMEMNT (continued)
285  Asget Hability management (ALM) (continued)

Financial risk (continuwed)
iify Market Risk (continued)
¢} Equity price risk

Equity price risk s the risk that the fabr valoe of o Gnancial instraments will Buctunate beesuse of changes in
market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency nisk), whether those changes are
cauaed by Becrors spedfic o the indbvidual financal instrument or ity ssuer, or fctors affecting all similar
financial instruments raded in the marker

The Company’s equiry price fsk exposure relates to fAnancial assets and financial labilities whose values will
fluctuate as & result of changes in market prices.

The Company’s equity price risk policy requires is to manage such dsks by setting snd monitorng objectves
and constraints on investments, diversification plans, sector and market. The fair vahses of financial assets ane
not different from their carrying valoes,

Sensitivities

The table below shows the results of sensitivity testing on the Company’s profit or loss and equity by type of
business. The sensitivity analysis indicates the effect of changes in price bsk factors arising from the impact of
the changes in these factors on the Company's investments;

WP increpse in price 10% decrease in price
Oher Oribvet
Profit or  comprehensive comprehensive
loss income  Profit or loss Income
AETD AED AETD AED
31 December 2022
Fair value through profit o loss 1,940,458 - (1,940 458) .
31 December 2021
Fakr value throwgh profit or loss 1,558,770 - (1,558,770

i) Operational Risk

Opemtonal rlsk & the dsk of loss ansing from system failore, human emor, fred or extemal events, When
controls fil to perform, operational dsks can couse damagee to repastation, have legal or regalatory implications
or can lead 1 finsncial loss.

The Company cannot expect to eliminate all opemtional risks, but by initiating a tgorous control famework
and by monitoring and responding 1o potential dsks, the Company is able to manage the dsks.

The Company has detailed systems and proceduses manuabs with effective segregation of dudes, access
controls, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff training and sssessment processes et with a
compliance and internal audit framesork. Business dsks such a8 changes in environment, technology and the
industry are monitored through the Company™s strategic planning and budgeting process.

29 POST REPORTING DATE EVENTS

Oin 1 March 2023, the Board of Disectors discussed and approved the propodal of reducing the paid capital &
AED 130 million and escalate it to the AGM for approval,

Excepe for the above event there are no other adjusting or significant non-sdjusting events that hive ocourned
hetwesn the reporting dare and the date of suthorsation of thess financial statements,

47



